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MWAA RFP 6-13-C002 
Taxicab Concession at IAD 

Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 
 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
March 1, 2013 

 
 
Question 1. Talking about demerit points, are we referring to demerit points as called for by the Virginia Division of 

Motor Vehicles? Or, has MWAA developed their own system of issuing and counting demerits for poor 
driving? 

 
Answer 1. “Demerit Points” are defined as the points associated with the Virginia Division of Motor Vehicles. 
 
Question 2. On Page 10 of 36 of the Contract where it states all cabs are required to have an EZ Pass. Does the driver 

or passenger pay for tolls on either the Dulles Toll Road or any other toll road? 
 
Answer 2. The driver may pass any cost of tolls on to the passenger. 
 
Question 3. Regardless of the response from MWAA on question 2 above, what is the expected resolution by MWAA 

regarding when a customer alleges the driver took EZ Pass routes in order to charge extra fares or run up 
the meter? This is question is indifferent to whether or not the customer may have changed their 
instructions to the driver after seeing what the pricey decision cost them at the end of the trip. 

 
Answer 3. Each driver should be trained by their company to inform the passenger of additional charges, ask the 

passenger which route they prefer, and how to resolve disagreements between the passenger and the 
driver. 

 
Question 4. Concerning the EZ Pass, with the 25 percent of cabs likely being leased vehicles, who will be responsible 

for the pre payment of the EZ Pass the driver or the Fleet manager? 
 
Answer 4. The driver should be responsible for establishing his or her own account. 
 
Question 5. If the answer to question 4 above is the fleet manager, is it reasonable for the fleet manager to charge the 

driver for the administrative and costs associated with this MWAA required feature? Keep in mind, the 
fees schedule excludes the management companies from making equipment and services required in order 
to charge extra to the drivers this is not a fleet management requirement by one from MWAA. 

 
Answer 5. See above. 
 
Question 6. Is the Approved Vehicles list available? 
 
Answer 6. The list of Approved Vehicles is not available at this time.  As soon as it is approved it will be released in 

an amendment to the RFP. 
 
Question 7. On page 15 of 36 of the Contract, Section C concerning Remittances, do we understand correctly that 

MWAA will no longer accept checks, and that all payments must be made over the Internet or via bank 
wire? 

 
Answer 7. Yes, all payments shall be made electronically. 
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Question 8. Concerning the Liquidated Damages fines listed on Page 23 of the contract, is the Fleet Manager allowed 
to charge the driver for these fines? Or are these fines solely the responsibility of the Fleet Manager? 

 
Answer 8. Liquidated damages shall not be passed through to the drivers.  The liquidated damages identified in the 

Contract are the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 
Question 9. Concerning the 75 percent privately owned requirement, is MWAA wanting the drivers or a separate 

leasing company to own their own vehicles to make this 75 percent requirement? 
 
Answer 9. 75% of each fleet shall be owned by drivers of the vehicles. 
 
Question 10. Concerning the insurance requirements for the cabs, Is this to be Combined Single Limits? 
 
Answer 10. Yes, the insurance requirement for the taxicabs is $350,000 Combined Single Limit. 
 
Question 11. Is a list of suggested improvements allowed? 
 
Answer 11. A list of suggested improvements is not required by the Request for Proposals and therefore will not be 

considered during the evaluation of the Offeror’s proposal. 
 
Question 12. MWAA requires minimum 30 percent outbound trips per day. As MWAA is currently making their 

money on both in and outbound trips, why isn’t MWAA including inbound as well towards the 30 
percent? 

 
Answer 12. The Authority considers outbound trips as the first priority given that passengers have limited means in 

which to arrange alternative taxicab service from the Airport.  This requirement will not be changed. 
 
Question 13. If the drivers do a lot of return business to IAD, why is he or she or that fleet not given credit towards the 

30 percent? 
 
Answer 13. See Answer 12. 
 
Question 14. Depending on the response from MWAA on questions 12 and 13 above, can the industry assume that 

outbound or the door activity is not the primary concern in the new contract or hold the same level of 
emphasis as in the past contract? 

 
Answer 14. See Answer 12. 
 
Question 15. Off airport cabs linked to Flyer fleet managers bring Flyer trips. A practice which is against MWAA 

rules. With this in mind, the charging of $2.65 on return trips to IAD is literally tacit encouragement of 
this practice by MWAA. With that being the case, is it more reasonable that MWAA will allow for the 
$2.65 fee to be charged to the passenger? 

 
Answer 15. The Authority is currently requesting a modification to the Washington Flyer Taxi rates and charges that 

will include a pass-through fee of all Airport fees to the customer. 
 
Question 16. Flyer Driver Representatives have called for the $2.65 fee to be charged to the passengers. And there has 

been some talk about this at Taxi Advisory Panel meetings. As some members of the Advisory Panel 
have voiced their support for passing this fee to the passengers, will MWAA help the drivers by charging 
this to the passengers?  

 
Answer 16. See Answer 15. 
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Question 17. Are we correct in our understanding that the dispatch company and not MWAA would be the entity 
issuing a significant number as noted in Article VIII subsection A.2., Subsection A.4 of the contractual 
violations fines. If we are correct in our assumption, does MWAA understand that this could potentially 
cause a labor action? 

 
Answer 17. The dispatch company will not have the authority to assess liquidated damages or fines against the taxicab 

companies.  The Authority may assess liquidated damages based on its own observations or those 
reported by the dispatch company after review by the Authority.   

 
Question 18. As there are many ethnicities currently driving at the Flyer, and many of these different ethnic factions are 

at war with each other in their homeland, how reasonable is it to ensure that again assuming that the 
dispatch company will play a major role in the assignment of liquidated damages such ethnic tensions 
will not play a role in determining the issuance of fines or liquidated damages? 

 
Answer 18. See Answer 17. 
 
Question 19. What are the qualifications and related experience related to person or persons in a position to investigate, 

review, or make final determination in cases involving a driver’s alleged misconduct? 
 
Answer 19. The Authority and/or the taxicab company will be responsible for determining a driver’s misconduct 

depending on the situation.  Reports of misconduct from a third party or from the dispatch contractor will 
be evaluated by the Authority and final determination will be made by the Authority as to what actions 
are necessary to be taken against the driver’s company. 

 
Question 20. What are the investigative steps and procedures being suggested or used by the dispatching contractor 

before assuming a driver is or is not responsible for an alleged violation or customer complaint? 
 
Answer 20. The dispatch company will only be responsible for reporting its observations.  The Authority will be 

responsible for investigation and determination of the validity of the violation, complaint, or observation. 
 
Question 21. What, if any are the steps outlined in dispute resolution of liquidated damages for an alleged complaint? 
 
Answer 21. The Authority will consider all information from all parties and will make the final determination.  After 

the Authority’s final decision is made no further dispute resolution will be offered. 
 
Question 22. In case of a liquidated damage being assessed by the dispatch contractor, will the driver who is assigned a 

liquidated damage be given a chance to appeal the fine? 
 
Answer 22. The dispatch contractor will not be assessing liquidated damages and drivers will not be assigned 

liquidated damages.  Any liquidated damages assessed will be done so by the Authority and will be paid 
by the taxicab company. 

  
Question 23. If the company is assigned liquidated damages? Can the company pass these onto the offending driver? 
 
Answer 23. The company shall not pass liquidated damages to the drivers. 
 
Question 24. Who or what will be the final determining factor in a liquidated damage being issued? The Dispatch 

Company or MWAA? 
 
Answer 24. The Authority will make the final determination in assessing liquidated damages. 
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Question 25. In the past, has MWAA had any charges of ethnic bias against any employee of any of the dispatch 
companies in the past 12 years? If so, how were these adjudicated?  

 
Answer 25. The Authority is not aware of any charges of ethnic bias against any employee of any of the dispatch 

companies in the past 12 years. 
 
Question 26. If a driver is found by the dispatch company to have committed a liquidated damage, will MWAA hold a 

hearing, or will MWAA automatically assume that the Dispatch Company employee is telling the truth 
without holding a fact finding process to uncover any relevant facts that might exist? 

 
Answer 26. See Answer 17 and Answer 19. 
 
Question 27. The contract calls for drivers to be available 24 hours a day 7 days per week and for each passenger to be 

picked up within a certain time frame. However there is no written exceptions for major snow storm, 
terrorist attack, other calamity that can not be foreseen, or other act of God. Will the MWAA hold the 
contractor reasonably responsible for such uncontrollable events? 

 
Answer 28. The Authority will consider certain uncontrollable events when service standards are not met. 
 
Question 29. During religious holidays such as Eid, Christmas, or Yom Kippur, if a driver takes a lesser yet reasonable 

number of trips, will the Contractor be held responsible?  
 
Answer 29. There is no defined number of trips per driver required under the Contract.  It is the company’s 

responsibility to ensure that there is an adequate number of taxicabs to provide service 24 hours a day 7 
days per week to meet the demand of the Airport’s patrons, and its contractually required minimum of 30 
percent of all outbound trips. 

 
Question 30. Section VII of the RFP lays out the evaluation criteria but not necessarily the scoring criteria. As money 

is now a more important factor seemingly than in years past. Will MWAA be accepting financially 
irresponsible bids, possibly sacrificing passenger comfort and safety? 

 
Answer 30. All criteria listed within the RFP will be considered during the evaluation of the proposals.  The Authority 

will select the Offerors that best meet all of the criteria. 
 
Question 31. Section VII of the RFP Subsection A2 states The highest financial offer received by the Authority will 

receive the highest score does this mean that MWAA is considering money given to MWAA to score 
higher than Operations plan and management and good technology and customer service? 

 
Answer 31. Please refer to the first paragraph of Section VII.A. of the RFP. 
 
Question 32. Section VII, we are not sure how to read the rank of scoring? Is Operations Management Plan 1st and 

Financial Offer 2nd? Or has the scoring been finalized yet? 
 
Answer 32. See Answer 30 and Answer 31. 
 
Question 33. The current minimum APT Fee is $1,000 per cab. But as everyone can clearly see, business has been 

dropping steadily for the drivers. If due to an act of terrorism, act of God, Silver Line, or other, will 
MWAA consider decreasing the ATP fee? 

 
Answer 33. Please refer Article 23, Section 23.08 of the Standard Provisions for Contracts which is attached to the 

Draft Contract as Exhibit G.  
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Question 34. Who or how is the final determinant of the number of trips? AVI, or count done by MWAA or the 
Dispatch company?  

 
Answer 34. The Authority shall use the Automated Vehicle Identification system as the determinant of the number of 

trips provided by each company. 
 
Question 35. In attachment 3 of the Contract, where the Contractor guarantees to MWAA the amount of the APT Fee. 

Contractor cannot increase its revenues. How does MWAA justify not allowing for an automatic stand 
dues increase so the revenues can keep up with the cost of doing business in the DC Metropolitan area? 

 
Answer 35. The Contractor may request the Authority’s approval for an increase on an annual basis. 
 
Question 36. Since the Airline vouchers will now be paid by airline credit card, putting a substantial burden on the 

contractor, will MWAA reconsider not allowing for a credit card processing fee?  
 
Answer 36. Only United Airlines has moved to electronic processing of its vouchers.  All other airlines require an 

invoice.  The Authority will not reconsider allowing for a credit card processing fee. 
 
Question 37. Attachment V other sources of revenue If the contractor finds itself required to rent space on a satellite, 

can this cost, or a portion of this cost, be passed onto the drivers? 
 
Answer 37. Cost of rented space on a satellite shall not be passed to the drivers. 
 
Question 38. Specifically, in the RFP MWAA strongly discourages employees, staff members, etc from owning 

vehicles or having personal interest in leasing cabs to drivers because of the existence or reasonable 
expectations to that a conflict of interest can occur. However, the Gross Receipts portion of the RFP 
specifically allows for Contractor to finance or have like interest or control in the sale, purchase and 
transfer of taxicab ownerships. Please explain the difference in philosophy and how changing an 
employee that represents the company and influences the company’s daily business practices is not the 
same as a faceless company having protected interest in the same financial scheme? 

 
Answer 38. See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
Question 39. The Gross Receipts section of the RFP specifically allows for Contractor financing of taxicabs, but does 

not allow for a communications fee or credit card processing fees. Since Contractor financing specifically 
puts in a conflict of interest. In years past certain contractors have required drivers to purchase or finance 
from the Company at rates that border on loan sharking, and then the driver is literally a slave to the 
Contractor, and if the driver is late on a payment, his cab is taken away and then resold to another driver 
under the same conditions. Between the fleet manager and the financing driver, how can MWAA allow 
this to occur, and then not allow the Contractor to collect a legitimate expense such as communication 
fees or credit card fees? 

 
Answer 39. See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
Question 40. Since the driver financing through a Contractor is obviously a conflict of interest, and borders on usury, 

and it is more reasonable that the credit card processing fees are a legitimate business operating expense, 
will MWAA consider exchanging vehicle financing for allowing the contractor to recoup its losses in the 
processing fees? This would be more cost effective to the drivers than allowing a rogue Contractor to 
overcharge an immigrant on interest rates and vehicle prices. 

 
Answer 40. There will be no change to credit card processing fee requirement. 
 



 
Page 6 

Question 41. Does a bidder have the right to offer suggestions which the bidder believes might be helpful to the Airport 
Authority? 

 
Answer 41. Suggestions offered will not be considered in the evaluation process unless required within the RFP.  
 
Question 42. Will the Authority issue a list of approved vehicles prior to the due date of the RFP? 
 
Answer 42. The list of Approved Vehicles is not available at this time.  As soon as it is approved it will be released in 

an amendment to the RFP. 
 
Question 43. Will the Authority consider dropping the requirement for road maps, only requiring the cars to be 

equipped with GPS devices, with a commitment from the Providers to train the drivers on operation of the 
GPS devices? 

 
Answer 43. The requirement for road maps will not be changed. 
 
Question 44. Article IV.C.2 of the Draft Contract states that driver ID face cards "shall be supplied by the Dispatch 

Contractor after the Dispatch Contractor has received all required documentation." Please provide an 
itemization of the documentation that will be required. 

 
Answer 44. The “required documentation” will consist of a form that is filled out by the driver’s taxicab company that 

attests that the following documentation has been collected by the company: 1) substance abuse check, 
criminal history check, driving record, valid drivers license, valid DMV Operating Authority, and valid 
insurance.   

 
Question 45. Time is of the essence when placing a taxicab operator into service. Once the required documentation has 

been provided to the Dispatch Contractor, will driver ID cards be processed and issued on the same day? 
 
Answer 45. Driver Face Cards will be processed and issued within 24 hours of receiving the required form.  
 
Question 46. Please provide pertinent information including points of contact at the Authority related to the process of 

obtaining permits (if necessary) to erect or replace an existing office trailer as referenced in Section I.H.1 
of the RFP and Article III-A of the Draft Contract. 

 
Answer 46. The Authority’s Engineering and Maintenance Division is responsible for assisting tenants and 

contractors in obtaining construction permits and can be reached on 703-572-2800.  Generally, it can take 
4-5 weeks to review plans and issue a permit.  Permits are issued by the Authority’s Building Codes 
Department. All design/construction shall conform to the following: 

 
Authority Design Manual 2010 
Virginia Construction Codes (VCC) 2009 
International Builders Code  2009 
International Plumbing Code 2009 
International Mechanical Code 2009 
National Electric Code 2008 
NFPA-13 2007 
ICC/ANSI A117.1 2003 
International Energy Conservation Code 2009 
Int. Fire Prevention Code 2009 
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Question 47. Article V.J. of the Draft Contract states "...The Contractor shall be responsible for invoicing the issuing 
airlines for reimbursement of any scrip collected, in accordance with the procedures of the issuing airline. 
The Authority shall have no liability to the Contractor for reimbursement of the value of the scrip."  

 
The Authority is assuming no responsibility for reimbursement, and taxicab contractors have little if any 
leverage with the airlines. Since the Contract requires contractors to accept all airline scrip as issued and 
to immediately reimburse drivers for services rendered, please clarify the following:  

 
a.  Is it the intention of the Authority to require taxicab contractors to extend blanket credit terms to 

each participating airline without the benefit of being able to specify terms and conditions for 
receiving payment in a timely manner? 

 
b.  Will the Authority provide the airline invoicing procedures referenced in V.J. for each participating 

airline prior to the close of this solicitation?  
 
c.  Please provide the average days to pay account aging during the current contract period (2008-

2013) for each airline the Authority has been invoicing for redeemed scrip. 
 
d.  Will contractors be free to enter into formal service agreements with each airline in order to protect 

their right to timely and complete reimbursement? 
 
e.  Will contractors have the right to refuse to accept vouchers from airlines who become delinquent on 

their accounts? 
 
f.  What recourse will a contractor have in the event any airline fails to make reimbursements in a 

timely manner?  
 
Answer 47. a.  Each taxicab contractor shall accept all airline scrip unless otherwise directed by the Authority.  

The taxicab contractors shall invoice the airlines with a 30 day payment term and may charge 
interest for any payments not received within that timeframe. 

 
b.  Invoicing procedures are listed on the scrip provided by the individual airlines which provides a 

name and address.   
 

c.  United Airlines which accounts for approximately 80% of all airline scrip received by the Authority 
recently began redeeming its scrip electronically through the driver’s credit card processing 
equipment.  This process has significantly reduced the amount of airline scrip requiring invoicing.  
The remaining airline scrip which the Authority estimates at approximately $200,000 annually shall 
be invoiced by the taxicab contractors.   

 
d.  The contractors may enter into formal service agreements with each airline. 

 
e.  The contractors shall not refuse to accept any airline scrip unless directed to do so by the Authority. 

 
f.  The Authority will assist any contractor that does not receive payment in a timely manner.  This 

assistance will include a meeting with the delinquent airline to resolve any late payments.  
 

Question 48. Article IV.D. of the Draft Contract makes reference to the "Washington Flyer Taxi Approved Vehicles 
List". Offerors who plan to operate company-owned leased vehicles must have sufficient time to obtain 
and prepare an adequate quantity of vehicles in time for the Contract start-up. Additionally, it is essential 
for an offeror to have the approved vehicle list prior to the submittal date of this RFP in order to properly 
develop its pro-forma. Will the Authority provide the approved vehicle list while this solicitation is still 
open? If not, will the Authority grant reasonable time extensions for compliance with relevant vehicle 
requirements? 

 
Answer 48. See Answer 6.   
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Question 49. In the response published by the Authority immediately following the Driver Information Sessions held 

on September 12, 2012 the Authority indicated that it was "...in the process of preparing a request to the 
Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Commission for an increase to the initial drop fee. The Airports 
Authority plans to request a minimum of $2.65 be added to the initial drop fee to compensate drivers for 
the trip fees charged by the Airport." Will the Authority confirm that it still intends to make this request to 
WMATC? Will the Authority also supply the expected date of this request? 

 
Answer 49. The Authority plans to submit a request to WMATC for its approval to increase the initial drop fee by 

$2.65.  This request should be submitted within 45 days.  
 
Question 50. IV.C.2 (p9/36): This paragraph requires the taximeter rate card displayed on the dashboard of each 

taxicab to provide a description of the rates AND to list approximate fares to most common destinations.  
 

Providing approximate fares immediately adjacent to regulated rates can be confusing for a customer and 
will likely result in numerous fare disputes between customers and taxi operators. There is also an issue of 
size and clutter as the additional space required to list common destinations and their fares would make 
the rate card too large for the available mounting area on most dashboards.  

 
We urge the Authority to reconsider the display of approximate common destination fares on the 
taximeter rate cards. If posting is required in the vehicle, please allow alternative locations, but please 
also consider the preference for this to be handled via brochures and signage at the airport. 

 
Answer 50. See Amendment No. 1, Item 2. 
 
Question 51. Is it correct that no language in the RFP is intended to create or insinuate an employment relationship 

between the taxicab drivers and/or the Airport? 
 
Answer 51. No language in the RFP is intended to create or insinuate an employment relationship between the taxicab 

drivers and/or the Airport. 
 
Question 52. Should the proposal include a separate transition plan for the two fleet sizes? 
 
Answer 52. There is only one fleet size per contractor.  The fleet size for each contractor is a minimum of 220 

vehicles and a maximum of 240 vehicles.  Only one transition plan is necessary. 
 
Question 53. What is the maximum transition time? 
 
Answer 53. The Authority expects a transition period of 60 days or less. 
 
Question 54. In the RFP "Taxi company may elect to offer the following services to its drivers but shall not establish as 

a requirement." What are the services that Taxicab Company may provide? Can Company establish 
standards of services if the driver goes elsewhere? 

 
Answer 54. The taxicab company is not limited to the services it may offer to its drivers.  The taxicab company may 

establish standards of services to meet the requirements set forth in its contract with the Authority.  
 
Question 55. If MWAA provides a trailer for office space use, what is the monthly rental fee? 
 
Answer 55. Please see Article III.A of the Draft Contract. 
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Question 56. Should the proposal include separate pro formas for the two different fleet sizes? 
 
Answer 56. There is only one fleet size per contractor.  The fleet size for each contractor is a minimum of 220 

vehicles and a maximum of 240 vehicles.  Only one pro forma based on the maximum of 240 vehicles is 
necessary. 

 
Question 57. Article IV.A.5.g of the Draft Contract requires "...that all taxicab operators obtain and at all times carry in 

their taxicab vehicles full-size (non-pocket size and non-folding), comprehensive, complete, and 
serviceable road maps no older than 2 years from print of the following areas: the District of Columbia, 
the State of Maryland and the Commonwealth of Virginia." Maps of this specification have virtually 
disappeared from the market place and those few which are still available are either insufficient or do not 
display a printing date. Will the Authority reconsider this requirement in light of the fact that all taxicabs 
are required to be equipped with operating electronic navigational devices which communicate with GPS 
satellites as referenced in the subsequent paragraph (IV.A.5.h)? 

 
Answer 57. See Answer 43. 
 
Question 58. Article IV.A.5.l of the Draft Contract requires a driver to report a "...traffic violation conviction within 

five (5) business days from the date of the violation." Since court dates (and therefore convictions) rarely 
if ever occur within five business days of the actual violation, please clarify the intention of the Authority. 

 
Answer 58. See Amendment No. 1, Item 1. 
 
Question 59. Answer number 1 of the official Questions and Answers for the now-withdrawn RFP 6-12-C002 dated 

July 27, 2012 states that a taxicab operator may not be absent from operating his/her vehicle for more 
than a period of two consecutive months. There is no reference to this requirement in either the current 
RFP or its Draft Contract. Does this statement apply to the current solicitation and its subsequent 
Contract? 

 
Answer 59. This requirement has been excluded from this RFP and Contract. 
 
Question 60. Since the Dispatch Contractor will be administering taxicab operator Face Cards, please clarify: will the 

Authority be charging 1/12th of the $250 annual fee based upon each Face Card issued (cumulatively); or 
for each valid (ACTIVE) face card in circulation as of the end of each operating month? If not, exactly 
how will this work? Will Contractors receive a monthly itemization of the face cards being assessed by 
driver ID number so that the Contractor can reconcile the expense? 

 
Answer 60. The Dispatch Contractor will furnish a monthly list of all face cards on file.  The Authority will invoice 

1/12th of the $250 Annual Per Driver fee for each active face card reported by the Dispatch Contractor.  
 
Question 61. Regarding the 50 page limitation of the proposal: is it correct that the page limitation includes only the 

body of text that directly responds to the technical requirements and does not include: tables of content, 
attached exhibit materials, cover letter, completed required forms, financial offer, or required charts or 
similar, such as organizational charts and pro forma financial statements and Exhibits that provide 
additional specifications or examples regarding the content of the technical proposal? Please confirm. 

 
Answer 61. Yes, the 50 page limitation refers only to the body of text that directly responds to the technical 

requirements.  Exhibits and other required attachments are excluded from the 50 page limitation. 
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Question 62. With regard to Section VI.A.1 (page 9/19 of the RFP): may Offerors use slightly larger and/or smaller 
fonts than 12-point font for headings and subheadings in their proposal to ensure that sections stand out 
from the body of text that will be exclusively in 12-point font? 

 
Answer 62. Alternate fonts no smaller than 12-point may be used for heading and subheadings in an Offeror’s 

proposal. 
 
Question 63. Schedule V does not have any list of allowed fees. 
 
Answer 63. The list provided in Attachment V is the list of fees the Offeror is permitted to charge its drivers.  The 

spaces with amounts or frequency entered may not be changed by the Offeror.  The Offeror may enter any 
amount or frequency it believes is reasonable in the remaining open spaces. 

  
Question 64. What Fees are allowed? Please provide list of allowed fees. 
 
Answer 64. Only the items listed in Attachment V to the RFP are allowed to be charged to the driver. 
 
Question 65. On page 3 of 19, Letter L, of the RFP mentions that the offeror is limited to providing leasing agreements 

of not more than 25% of the allowable maximum number of taxicabs allocated to its fleet:  
 
a.  What is the Authority’s rationale for limiting the leasing agreements to 25% of the fleet? 
 
b. Please define the term leasing agreement? 
 
c.  Since a Lease is a contract of a specified time for rent, does the 25% cap apply to rental taxis only? 
 
d.  Would the sale of a vehicle to a driver via a lease purchase agreement in which the vehicle remains 

in the name of the offeror for a certain period of time, 3 years, and then transferred to the driver 
upon completion of the lease be included in the 25% limitation? If the lease purchase agreement is 
with an affiliated company and not the offeror does that count against the 25% limitation for leasing 
agreement?  

 
e.  If an offerors fleet,240 vehicles, is composed of 60 rental vehicles, will it be permissible to have the 

balance of the fleet consist of vehicles provided to drivers pursuant to a lease purchase agreement?  
 
f.  Can a company keep vehicles in its corporate name that are provided to drivers under the terms of a 

lease/purchase contract until the vehicles are fully paid for without having those vehicles count 
against the prohibition of "not more than 25% of the allowable maximum number of taxicabs 
allocated to its fleet"?  

 
Answer 65. a. The Authority has determined that limiting the number of leased/rented vehicles is in the best 

interest of the operation at this time. 
 

b. See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
c. No. See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
d. Lease purchase agreements regardless of vehicle ownership is considered part of the Vehicle 

Agreement limit.  See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
e. No. See Amendment No.1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
f. No. See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
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Question 66. Did the Airport authority take into consideration the effects of a strike with 75% of the vehicles being 
controlled by individual operators?  

 
Answer 66. Yes.  The Authority considered many factors during the development of this RFP.  The Contractor is 

responsible for ensuring good labor harmony amongst its drivers and employees.  The Contractor is also 
required to provide 30% of the daily outbound trips from the Airport.  

 
Question 67. Are there different definitions given to the terms "Lease" and "Rental" as used in the RFP?  
 
Answer 67. See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4.  
 
Question 68. Can MWAA clarify the difference between the terms "Lease" and "Rental" as used throughout the RFP?  
 
Answer 68. See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
Question 69. On page 10 of 19, section B, proposal content, under sub section 1, the RFP asks how the vehicles are to 

be owned, can the Offeror have a 100% of the vehicles in the Offeror's name? Also are rental agreements 
allowed beside using leasing agreements? 

 
Answer 69. The Offeror shall not have more than 25% of its maximum allocated vehicles titled in the Contractor’s 

name. See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
Question 70. Is there any limitation on the number of vehicles within its fleet that an Offeror can rent to a taxicab 

driver? 
 
Answer 70. See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
Question 71. Is there any limitation on the number of vehicles within its fleet that an Offeror can sell to drivers? 
 
Answer 71. There is no limit on the number of vehicles an Offeror may sell to its drivers provided they are not 

financed.  No driver shall be required by the Contractor to purchase a vehicle from the Contractor or any 
of the Contractor’s affiliates as a condition of the driver’s contractual agreement to operate as a 
Washington Flyer Taxi driver.  See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 

 
Question 72. What is the difference to the driver and the authority if the vehicle is sold under a lease purchase 

agreement or a sales financing agreement? 
 
Answer 72. There is no difference.  See Amendment No. 1, Item 3 and 4. 
 
Question 73. Your inbound and outbound access fees are accessed per recorded trip, can you explain what constitutes a 

recorded trip. 
 
Answer 73. In bound and outbound access fees are recorded by the Automated Vehicle Identification system (AVI).  

A trip is recorded each time a vehicle passes through the readers at the Commercial Vehicle Curb or on 
the Departures/Arrivals Levels. 

 
Question 74. Inbound and outbound access fees; if a driver arrives at the airport with a passenger and discharges that 

passenger at Departures then proceeds to the line for Arrivals and leaves the airport with a passenger how 
many fees is he charged?  

 
Answer 74. The driver will be charged for two trips (one inbound and one outbound) 
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Question 75. Inbound and outbound access fees; if a driver arrives at the airport without a passenger and proceeds to 
the line for Arrivals and leaves with a passenger, How many fees is he charged? 

 
Answer 75. Provided the driver does not cross under any readers on the Departures/Arrivals Levels, that driver will 

only be charged for the trip outbound. 
 
Question 76. Inbound and outbound access fees; if a driver arrives at the airport without a passenger and proceeds to 

the line for Arrivals but ultimately leaves with out a passenger, is he charged a fee? 
 
Answer 76. Drivers are charged any time they pass under a reader regardless of whether or not they carry a passenger 

to or from the Airport except at the end of each night when the last flight has been declared and drivers 
are permitted to leave Commercial Vehicle Curb without being charged. 

 
Question 77. Will the Airport consider modifying the rule requiring that each provider contribute 30% of trips on a 

daily basis to make it on a monthly basis? 
 
Answer 77. This requirement will not be changed. 
 
Question 78. In section 7B of the contract, a reputable insurance company is described as one having an A rating or 

better and a financial size category of VII or better from AM Best Company or an equivalent rating 
service. Does this apply to the individual drivers auto liability insurance or the insurance companies used 
by the contractors to include their fleet? 

 
Answer 78. This insurance requirement is only for the Contractor and the vehicles owned by the Contractor and/or 

any vehicles insured by the Contractor or its insurance policy.  
 
Question 79. Will the Airport consider adding the per-trip fee paid by the drivers to the meter fare? 
 
Answer 79. See Answer 15. 


